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Inwood 9th Avenue RFP Addendum 
RFP Issue Date: October 9, 2024 

Pre-submission Conference Date: November 7, 2024 

Addendum 1 Issue Date: November 27, 2024 
 

Contents of the Addendum 

A. Questions and Answers — Enclosed are questions and answers that were asked at the pre-

submission conference on November 7, 2024, as well as questions sent to the RFP email address 

through November 26, 2024. 

B. Additional guidance on the RFP — Additional guidance is provided  

C. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those individuals who registered for 

the pre-submission conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact 

information. 
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A. Questions and Answers  
 

General 
1. Will slides be sent after the meeting to all attendees? 

The slides are posted on the project website and can be found here. 
 

2. Will the recording of this session be made available? 
A recording of the session will not be made available.  
 

3. Will the Zoom attendee list be shared? 
The list of those who opted to share their contact information can be found in Section C of this 
addendum.  
 

4. Will Q&A be shared in writing in an addendum? 
Yes, this addendum shows the questions and answers from the pre-submission conference as 
well as email questions received through November 26, 2024. Additional questions that come in 
through email will also be posted in a later addendum.   
 

5. The list of threshold items in the presentation is much shorter than in the RFP. What are 
threshold items versus competitive items?  
The RFP includes a section that outlines the threshold versus competitive criteria, which can be 
found in Section V: Submission Requirements and Competitive Preferences starting on page 20 of 
the RFP.  
 

6. When does HPD plan on designating the Site? 
Currently, HPD hopes to designate the Proposal within eight to ten months of the submission 
deadline. HPD may share updates to the timeline as review progresses. 
 

7. What type of housing is being sought here?  
The housing must be 100% affordable, in compliance with HPD program term sheets, design 
guidelines, and requirements identified in the RFP. Additional goals are identified in the RFP as 
well as in the Community Visioning Report.  
 

8. Will firms be notified of elimination between Competitive Review Phase 1 and Competitive 
Review Phase 2? Why or why not? 
No, Respondents will not be notified between the two phases of review. To preserve the 
integrity of the RFP competitive review process, HPD does not share information on submission 
status with Respondents during the course of review.  

 
9. Will HPD consider an extension of the RFP deadline for teams with respect to incorporating 

City of Yes decisions and the upcoming holidays? 
Given the complexity of the Site and the upcoming holidays, HPD will grant an extension for 
Proposals to be submitted. The deadline for submission is now Friday, January 24th at 4 pm. See 
responses below for further information on City of Yes. 
 

 

https://www.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/inwood9th-rfp-submit-response.page
https://www.nyc.gov/assets/hpd/downloads/pdfs/services/inwood-rfp-pre-submission-conf-nov-7-24.pdf
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Development Team 

10. Does the requirement to have an engineer as part of the Development Team refer to any 
specific type of engineer? 
A registered design professional is required for every team, including any and all types of 
engineers as required by specialization for the Project.  
 

11. To satisfy the equitable ownership requirement, can an M/WBE and Non-Profit share the 25% 
ownership, or does one firm have to have more than 25%? 
One firm must meet the equitable ownership requirement of 25% – this cannot be split amongst 
multiple entities.   

 
Finance 

12. The description for "Social Services for Tenants" indicates that we should not include a social 
services budget in our Submission. Does that mean we can assume funding sources like NYC 
15/15, without including a corresponding budget line item for the accompanying social 
services in our project underwriting? 
Applicants are welcome to propose NYC 15/15 or other funding sources. Services funding under 
such sources should be kept off-budget in project underwriting, though rent subsidy under such 
programs should be incorporated in the project underwriting per Appendix D (Financial 
Assumptions). Social Service Reserves where required by term sheets in applicable situations 
should still be included in the project underwriting. 
 

13. Will HPD allow underwriting that exceeds the $140,000 per unit subsidy stipulated by the ELLA 
term sheet? 
Note the current published HPD ELLA term sheet subsidy limit is $122,500 per unit for a 100% 
LIHTC project and $137,500 per unit for an 80% LIHTC project. HPD acknowledges that Projects 
may need subsidy over term sheet limits in the current cost environment. Applicants should 
show the additional subsidy amount needed in underwriting models and financial assumptions. 
 

14. Can we exceed $500,000 per unit volume cap subsidy? 
Applicants are permitted to submit underwriting proposals that exceed the $500,000 eligible 
basis cap for 4% LIHTC, but respondents should explain why the basis cap is exceeded and how 
they might reduce costs further. 9% LIHTC proposals should not exceed the eligible basis cap. All 
Proposals will be reviewed for overall efficient utilization of financing resources. 
 

15. Is there funding (including Reso A from the Inwood rezoning) available for the STEM facility? 

Respondents should not assume availability of funding (including Reso A) for the STEM facility.  
 

16. Do you anticipate the STEM tenant will pay rent? 
Proposed community facilities should generate rental income, and the Development Team 
should identify sources to support all associated development costs, inclusive of hard and soft 
costs.    
 

17. When making the choice between exceeding the eligible basis cap vs requesting more subsidy, 
can you confirm HPD’s preference? 
See response to Question 14. 
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18. Has HPD considered the cost of insurance if the development/management team is expected 
to maintain the public space? 
Insurance must be provided and is required by the Zoning Resolution. Respondents should 
include this assumption in their Proposals.  
 

19. Will HPD allow teams to underwrite community facility spaces in eligible basis? 
HPD doesn’t have a requirement either way. Financing proposals will be reviewed overall for 
their efficiency of use of public resources, in accordance with competitive criteria listed in RFP. 

 
Development Site Assumptions 

20. Can you explain how the City arrived at an estimated unit count of 570? 
This estimate is based on analysis done during the Inwood Rezoning; the Site was part of the 
rezoning and was analyzed as a projected site during environmental review. However, the RFP 
does not include a unit count requirement. We encourage Respondents to review the RFP, 
survey, and site conditions, and put forward proposals for what is feasible based on that 
analysis. 
 

21. What is the square footage of the portion of the lot which should be used to determine the 
maximum FAR? On the survey, should we be using the heavy dashed line directly to the south 
of the stabilized shoreline zone to determine the separation between the seaward and 
landward portions of the zoning lot and to determine lot SF for FAR? 
For the purposes of this RFP, Respondents should use the “Mean High Water Line” on the 
Inwood Shoreline Location Map linked on DCP's website to calculate FAR.  
  
Additionally, Respondents should not assume any generation of air rights from the WPAA 
portion of the Site north of the easterly prolongation of the southern line of lot 67 (shown in a 
dashed line on the provided survey, and see additional guidance in Section B of this addendum). 
However, Respondents should assume buildout of the WPAA along the entire lot line. 
 

22. The survey provided in the RFP includes a note (located at the bottom of the page) that 
clarifies the area of the Site that is below the mean high-water line. The note reads as such:   

 
Per ZR 142-21, Floor Area is to be counted using the “Shoreline” (defined as the Mean High 
Water Line), can we use this survey information instead of the "Edge of Pavement" line to 
generate floor area? 
See response to Question 21. 

23. Can you please confirm the shoreline boundary to be used for determining the Shore Public 
Walkway? ZR 142-08 refers to DCP website. Can location of reference survey be confirmed 
and added to the survey? 
See response to Question 21.  
 

24. Can the seaward and upland area breakdown of the zoning lot be provided? ZR 142-21 
requires seaward area to be excluded in calculation of allowable floor area. 
See response to Question 21. 

 

https://www.nyc.gov/assets/planning/download/pdf/zoning/graphics-charts/inwood-shore-line-map.pdf?r=1
https://www.nyc.gov/site/planning/zoning/graphic-files.page
https://zr.planning.nyc.gov/article-xiv/chapter-2/142-21
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25. Is the boundary for the development area in the survey at, above, or below sea level?  
See response to Question 21. 
 

26. Can you confirm that Lot #47 on the survey corresponds to Lot #50 referenced in the RFP? 
The old lot 47 on the survey continues to the south of current lot 50, where current lot 47 still 
exists. The area outlined in purple on the survey (the “new northern city lot”) corresponds with 
lots 50 and 75, the subject lots of this RFP.   
 

27. Can we modify the shoreline to straighten the water’s edge and rationalize the Site? 
For purposes of this RFP, please do not modify the shoreline.   
 

28. If we are using edge of pavement for purposes of calculating FAR, does the 40’ waterfront 
yard need to be measured from this line as well? 
See response to Question 21. The waterfront yard should be measured from the “Mean High 
Water Line” on the Inwood Shoreline Location Map linked on DCP's website.  
 

29. Does the southern west portion of existing building have to stay? Or should we assume this 
will be demolished? 
Respondents can assume demolition of the existing building. 
 

30. Have the 2 parcels already been combined into 1 zoning lot? 
The parcels are currently two separate tax lots, but can be considered one zoning lot for 
purposes of this RFP. 
 

31. During the Pre-submission Conference, teams were advised to use the “Edge of Pavement” 
line for the calculation of Floor Area. If one uses that line, the remaining lot area is 1.48 acres. 
According to ZR 142-43 (e) last paragraph, the lot area needs to be 1.5 acres to allow two 
towers. In order to use all of the Zoning Floor Area, two towers are necessary. Can HPD move 
the lot area demarcation to allow 1.5 acres for the project area? Or, can the 1.48 acres be 
rounded up to 1.5 to allow for two towers?  
See response to Question 21. 
 

32. What is the purpose of the charter easement (as shown on the survey in the southern portion 
of the lot)? Can the charter easement be used for access to building/parking on site? Are any 
forms of construction permitted on the Charter easement? Can the associated area be utilized 
as an informal pedestrian pathway, even if not a legal form of egress? 
The permitted use of the easement area is governed by an Easement Agreement recorded at 
CRFN 2022000070247, which provides for the exclusive use of the area by Spectrum New York 
Metro, LLC. Please refer to the recorded agreement for further guidance. 
 

33. Does the charter easement generate FAR?  
Respondents may assume generation of floor area from the Charter easement area.  
 

34. Will the waterfront access be developed and conveyed back to the City (Parks Department?) 
or will it be owned and managed by the developer? 
While this will not be determined until a future date, for purposes of this RFP, Respondents may 
assume that the WPAA will be conveyed to and owned by the Development Team. 
 

https://www.nyc.gov/site/planning/zoning/graphic-files.page
https://zr.planning.nyc.gov/article-xiv/chapter-2/142-43
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35. The legal lot line extends into Harlem River, does that mean development can extend 
construction/development to the lot line for waterfront walkways, etc? What about a 
platform/pier into the water?  
For purposes of this RFP, Respondents should not assume development over the water. 
 

Zoning 
36. Should we consider “City of Yes” at all? City of Yes would allow for a higher building height, 

and would not require any parking.  
For purposes of this RFP, Respondents may incorporate the Zoning for Housing Opportunity text 
amendment as currently voted on by the New York City Council Committee on Land Use and 
Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises.  
 

37. The Site is in a FRESH food tax and zoning incentives area. Is there a program to include FRESH 
food incentive? 
Yes, Respondents may propose Projects that comply with the requirements and allowances of 
the FRESH incentive programs.  

 
STEM Community Facility and Non-Residential Space 

38. Can you expand on what is being sought for the STEM facility? 
The RFP is intentionally flexible and open so that Respondents may use their creativity and 
expertise when crafting STEM proposals. Additionally, Respondents should refer to the 
Community Visioning Report for information on local needs.  
 

39. Does the STEM facility need to be at the ground level or could it be on the upper floors? 
There is no restriction on the location of the facility as long as it is pursuant to zoning.  
 

40. Is there any guidance as to the size of the STEM facility? 
There is no requirement or guidance as to the size of the facility.   
 

41. For the competitive review of bids, can you share context on how the STEM facility portion of 
the response will be considered in terms of its weight relative to housing, and other aspects of 
the submission? 
HPD will not provide additional details on the weighting of criteria.  
 

42. There is a planned grocery nearby. Will HPD have a preference to include another grocery 
store? 
HPD will not provide guidance on additional non-residential uses. Respondents should refer to 
the Community Visioning Report as well as knowledge of the Site and surroundings to inform 
their Proposals. 

 
Waterfront Public Access Area 

43. The zoning for the upland connection seems to require a 30’ offset from the lot line. Could we 
assume a 15’ offset instead (i.e. from the midpoint line of the 30’ offset), rather than the full 
30’? 
The upland connection along the prolongation of West 218th Street is not part of the City site. 
Only the upland connection along the shared boundary between Parcels 1 and 2/3 will be built 
out by the Development Team. Please refer to the New York City Zoning Resolution for further 
guidance.  
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44. Can we assume waterfront access through lots 67 and 71 to the north, leaving more 

developable land on the RFP site up to the lot line? 
Lots 67 and 71 are privately owned parking lots. The requirement for the upland connection 
should be satisfied on the City-owned site. 

45. Does the upland connection need to be south of the red line shown in the presentation slides? 
No, the upland connection on the City site is not required to be below the red line. 
 

46. There appears to be a conflict in HPD's guidance between the use of the "Edge of Pavement" 

line as the shoreline and the design of the shore public walkway. While we understand the use 

of the former for WPAA planning purposes, our interpretation of the zoning text and HPD's 

own guidance suggests that the shore public walkway must extend the full length of the lot 

line. Please clarify.  

Respondents should follow the guidance of the New York City Zoning Resolution. In event of a 

conflict, Respondents should not assume any build out or landscaping of the space falling with 

the Charter easement. For guidance on shoreline, please refer to Question 21.  

 

47. During the Pre-Submission Conference, HPD provided guidance regarding the Charter 

easement and our inability to develop on the associated area. However, this guidance appears 

to conflict with the requirement for a shore public walkway which runs the full length of the 

lot line. Please clarify HPD's position on the interpretation of the Charter easement relative to 

the SPW requirement. Does HPD expect the Development Team to landscape the southern 

portion of the easement?  

Respondents should not assume any build out or landscaping of the space falling with the 

Charter easement. 

 

48. Zoning map 5 of ZR 142-62 shows a supplemental public access area on the project site. 

Section 142-62 (d)(2) specifies that, only if required, a supplemental public access area must 

be located as shown in the attached diagram. However, based on our calculations and the 

assumption that the shore public walkway must extend the full length of the lot line, the 

combined area of the shore public walkway and upland connection appears to meet the 

waterfront public access area (WPAA) requirements, and therefore a supplemental public 

access area is not required and this text would not apply. Please confirm. Additionally, we are 

not aware of any other provisions, either in the special zoning text or elsewhere, that would 

require a supplemental public access area at this site. Our understanding is that supplemental 

public access areas are intended solely to help meet WPAA requirements if the shore public 

walkway and upland connection cannot do so on their own and thus do not apply here. Please 

confirm this interpretation. 

Development Teams should follow the requirements of the New York City Zoning Resolution. 

HPD will not offer an interpretation at this time.   

 
Resiliency, Sustainability, and Environmental 

49. The Site is currently in shaded Zone X, but is anticipated to be in a special flood hazard zone in 
2080. Can we assume that Chapter 4 Special Regulations Applying in Flood Zones apply in this 
case (including measurement from a reference plane)? 

https://zr.planning.nyc.gov/article-xiv/chapter-2/142-62
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Section 64-00 provisions applicable to zoning lots within the current 500-year floodplain – aka 
Shaded X Zone or 0.2% annual chance or moderate flood hazard area – should be applicable to 
the Site. However, respondents should not assume provisions applicable to developments 
within the current 100-year floodplain would apply to the future 2080s special flood hazard 
area.   

 
50. In our experience with other projects requiring a Tidal Wetlands permit, it has been critical to 

define the allotment for impervious construction area, as this will directly impact the 
buildable area of the site and any potential building or landscape design. However, the RFP 
does not include specifics as to the permit or the ratio of pervious to impervious surface. Has 
HPD received additional guidance from DEC regarding the permit? If so, does HPD plan to 
circulate this information to the development team?  
As noted in the Project Snapshot of the RFP, the Site is located along a State-regulated tidal 
wetland and any Proposals and associated Site or shoreline work must comply with NYS DEC 
Tidal Wetlands Permit program, where applicable. HPD has not received additional guidance 
from DEC, and will not specify impervious ratio for the Site.  
 

51. Should a high-risk flood zone be assumed for zoning compliance?  

Respondents would need to demonstrate the zoning lot is located within the high-risk flood 

zone. As such, it should not be assumed the site is located in a high-risk flood zone for zoning 

compliance purposes.  

52. Does the City have bathymetry and/or LIDAR data for the Harlem River? Can CAD of the 
shoreline boundary survey be provided? 
No bathymetry, LiDAR, or CAD data are available for the purposes of this RFP. 
 

53. Is there a Phase 1 and/or Phase 2 report that can be provided? 
The Developer will be responsible for preparing an Environmental Assessment and/or Impact 
Statement and associated studies as necessary, including but are not limited to Phase I and 
Phase II site assessments. Teams may review all the publicly available environmental review 
documents using CEQR Access. 
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B. Additional Guidance 

 

1. Guidance on FAR generation assumptions 

 

1. Respondents should not assume generation of FAR from any lot area within the future 

Waterfront Public Access Area north of the easterly prolongation of the southern line of lot 

67 (approximately shown by the dashed line on the survey, circled below in red).  

2. Respondents should assume full build out and maintenance of the WPAA in compliance with 

the New York City Zoning Resolution. 

 



 

 

C. Contact Information for Pre-Submission Conference RSVPs Who Opted Share 

Their Information 

Organization Name Email May we share your contact 
information?  

Adjaye Associates Adrian Lopez adrianl@adjaye.com Yes 
Calyx Development 
Corporation 

Alana Smith Alana@calyx.nyc Yes 

Urban Builders Collaborative Alejandro Baquero abaquero@lettire.com Yes 
Kasirer Alex Shapanka alex.shapanka@kasirer.nyc Yes 
Gilbane Development 
Company 

Alexander Marte amarte@gilbaneco.com Yes 

Bottom Line Construction & 
Development,LLC 

Alexis McSween development@blcdnyc.com Yes 

Selfhelp Realty Group Alison Lam alam@selfhelp.net Yes 
Xenolith Partners Andrea Kretchmer andrea@xenolithpartners.com Yes 
Bernheimer Architecture ANDREW BERNHEIMER andy@bernheimerarchitecture.com Yes 
Jonathan Rose Companies Andrew Foley afoley@rosecompanies.com Yes 
ESKW/Architects Andrew Knox aknox@eskwarchitects.com Yes 
LCOR Andrew Laboz alaboz@lcor.com Yes 
Gilbane Development 
Company 

Andrew Olivo aolivo@gilbaneco.com Yes 

Sasaki Annie Langlois  alanglois@sasaki.com  Yes 
Win NYC Anthony Andreano aandreano@winnyc.org Yes 
Studio Gang Architects, Ltd. Audrey Washuta marketing@studiogang.com Yes 
Tishman Speyer August Doyle audoyle@tishmanspeyer.com Yes 
JGM, Inc. Azmat Aulakh aaulakh@jgminc.com Yes 
Goddard riverside  Bajar  Generalbee@ymail.com Yes 
Urbahn Architects Brad DeBose deboseb@urbahn.com Yes 
Gilbane Development  Brendan McBride bmcbride@gilbaneco.com Yes 
Women in Need, inc. Brennen Fields bfields@winnyc.org Yes 
Beam Center Brian Cohen  brian@beamcenter.org Yes 



 

 

St. Nicks Alliance Brian Halusan bhalusan@stnicksalliance.org Yes 
World Urban C. Knox LaSister cknoxlasister3@gmail.com Yes 
The Richman Group 
Development Corporation 

Carter Clarke clarkec@richmancapital.com Yes 

OPEN Impact Real Estate Casey Noel cnoel@openregroup.com Yes 
NYAH Advisors, LLC Catherine Townsend ctownsend@nyahadvisors.com Yes 
Slate Property Group Cha Lee clee@slatepg.com Yes 
Tiffany Street Strategies Charlie E. Samboy charlie@tiffanystreetstrategies.com Yes 
Tiffany Street Strategies Charlie Samboy  charlie@tiffanystreetstrategies.com Yes 
CAMBA Housing Ventures Charlie Stewart charles.stewart@camba.org Yes 
Think! Architecture and Design Charlotte Wensley charlotte@think-arc.com Yes 
MaGrann Associates Chase Sizemore ChaseSizemore@MaGrann.com Yes 
Denham Wolf Real Estate 
Services 

Chelsea Mullen cmullen@denhamwolf.com Yes 

Morris Adjmi Architects Christine Iasonidis ci@ma.com Yes 
Aufgang Christopher Walker christopher@aufgang.com Yes 
Langan Claudia Ballolli cballolli@langan.com Yes 
Lantern Organization Dan Bianco dbianco@lnternhousing.org Yes 
Lantern Organization Dan Kent dkent@lanternhousing.org Yes 
Apex Building Group Daniel Cohen dcohen@apexbuilds.com Yes 
AtelierTek Architects Daniel Hammerman daniel.hammerman@ateliertek.com Yes 
Apex Building Group Daniel Marks Cohen dcohen@apexbuilds.com Yes 
Acacia Network, Inc David Almonte dalmonte@promesa.org Yes 
david cunningham architecture 
planning pllc 

david cunningham david@dcapny.com Yes 

GF55 Architects David E. Gross AIA david@gf55.com Yes 
Inwood Owners Coalition David Thom inwoodowners@gmail.com Yes 
Handel Architects Deborah Moelis dmoelis@handelarchitects.com Yes 
Construction Information 
Systems 

Debra Sauerman debras@cisleads.com Yes 

SAA|EVI Derrick Hall  Dhall@saaevi.com  Yes 
NYAH Advisors, LLC Diana Glanternik dglanternik@nyahadvisors.com Yes 
WDF Inc. Dina Cardoso dcardoso@wdfinc.net Yes 



 

 

MHANY Management, Inc Dominic Colangelo dcolangelo@mutualhousingny.org Yes 
The STEM Institute at The City 
College of New York 

Doris Cintrón dcintron@ccny.cuny.edu Yes 

Pennrose  Dylan Salmons dsalmons@pennrose.com Yes 
Totem  Elizabeth Canela elizabeth@totembrooklyn.com Yes 
Fairstead Ellen Shakespear ellen.shakespear@fairstead.com Yes 
Ruzow & Assocaites Elyse Ruzow Ruzow@RuzowandAssocaites.com Yes 
L+M Development Partners Emily Johansen ejohansen@lmdp.com Yes 
RiseBoro Community 
Partnership 

Emily Kurtz ekurtz@riseboro.org Yes 

Urbahn Architects PLLC Enrico Kurniawan kurniawane@urbahn.com Yes 
It takes a village africa 
Coporation  

Erica Davies  Erica@ericadavies.com  Yes 

Perkins Eastman Architects Ernesto Vela e.vela@perkinseastman.com Yes 
The Hudson Companies Inc. Ernie Padron epadron@hudsoninc.com Yes 
ESKW/Architects ESKW/Architects bd@eskwarchitects.com Yes 
MAP architects Fernando Villa fvilla@maparchitects.com Yes 
Monadnock Development Frank Dubinsky fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com Yes 
SCCS Group Gael Lamothe gael@sccsgroupllc.com Yes 
Gilbane Development 
Company 

George Papadopoulos GPapadop@GilbaneCo.com Yes 

Handel Architects Grace O'Connor goconnor@handelarchitects.com Yes 
GR Design Lab Gustavo Rodriguez Gustavo@grdesignlab.com Yes 
L+M Development Partners Heli Pinillos-Schwartz hpinillos@lmdp.com Yes 
Handel Architects Ihnil Kim ikim@handelarchitects.com Yes 
Urbahn Architects Ijeoma D. Iheanacho iheanachoi@urbahn.com Yes 
Grimshaw Iouyu Chen iouyu.chen@girmshaw.global Yes 
Joy Construction Isaac Schwartzberg Isaac@joycon1st.com Yes 
Apex Building Group Jack Lei jlei@apexbuilds.com Yes 
WXY Architecture + Urban 
Design 

Jacob Dugopolski jacob@wxystudio.com Yes 

Achieve Engineering Janette Wu Jwu1007@achieveengineer.com Yes 
TRC Jared Jwolf@troyrealtycap.com Yes 



 

 

COOKFOX Architects Jared Gilbert jgilbert@Cookfox.com Yes 
S9 Architecture  Jared Paulen j.paulen@s9architecture.com Yes 
HANDEL ARCHITECTS JASON FUNG JFUNG@HANDELARCHITECTS.COM Yes 
J Rust Consulting LLC Jason Rust  jason@jrustconsulting.com Yes 
Douglaston Development JaVonna James jjames@ddny.com Yes 
The NHP Foundation Jay Cengiz jcengiz@nhpfoundation.org Yes 
VHB Jay Prouty jprouty@vhb.com Yes 
IMEG Jeffrey Jones jeffrey.a.jones@imegcorp.com Yes 
OBRA Architects Jennifer Lee jennifer@obraarchitects.com Yes 
Jonathan Rose Companies Jenny Wu jwu@rosecompanies.com Yes 
L+M Development Partners Jerald Watson Yes 
L+M Development Partners Jerald Watson jwatson@lmdp.com Yes 
One Bar Development Jessica Sherman jsherman@onebardevelopment.com Yes 
Selfhelp Community Services  Joe Kenton jkenton@selfhelp.net Yes 
Brooksville John Scott Johnson jsjohnson@brooksville.com Yes 
Denham Wolf Real Estate 
Services  

Jonathan Denh jdenham@denhamwolf.com Yes 

Urban Builders Collaborative 
LLC, Lettire Construction Corp. 

Jordanna Lacoste-Tichner jlacoste@lettire.com Yes 

Urban Architectural Initiatives Jorge Chang jchang@uai-ny.com Yes 
Magnusson Architecture and 
Planning 

Joseph Moyer jmoyer@maparchitects.com Yes 

The NRP Group Joyce Kwon jikwon@nrpgroup.com Yes 
Habitat NYC and Westchester Juliana Bernal jbernal@habitatnycwc.org Yes 
McKissack & McKissack Karen Maida kmaida@mckissack.com Yes 
Genesis Companies Karim Hutson khutson@genesiscompanies.com Yes 
K Force Construction LLC Karina De La Crux karina@kforceconstruction.com Yes 
Inwood  Karla Cruz  Kcruz806@yahoo.com Yes 
Rockabill Katie Devine kdevine@rockabill.com Yes 
BDP Kunal kunal.arora@bdp.com Yes 
MaGrann Associates Laila Reilly lailareilly@magrann.com Yes 
The Hudson Companies Laszlo Syrop lsyrop@hudsoninc.com Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Lauren Kim lk@ma.com Yes 



 

 

Apex Building Group Lee Brathwaite lee@apexbuilds.com Yes 
Turner Construction Company Lisa Hickerson lhickerson@tcco.com Yes 
Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc.  Lisa Trub ltrub@selfhelp.net Yes 
Karoff Consulting Lorinda Karoff lkaroff@karoffconsulting.com Yes 
Monadnock Development Luis Miguel Pizano lpizano@monadnockdevelopment.com Yes 
Fish Plate Development LLC Maggie Poxon maggie@fishplatedevelopment.com Yes 
HCCI  Malcolm A. Punter mpunter@hcci.org Yes 
PAU (Practice for Architecture 
and Urbanism) 

Mark Faulkner mf@pau.studio Yes 

Architecture Outfit Marta Sanders marta@archoutfit.com Yes 
Fogarty Finger Martin Tolentino martin.tolentino@fogartyfinger.com Yes 
Architecture in Formation  Matthew Bremer  matt@aifny.com  Yes 
Maddd Equities  Maya Hatcher Maya@madddequities.com Yes 
Vaya Development Melissa Bindra melissa@vayadevelopment.com Yes 
Settlement Housing Fund, Inc Michael Gaboury mgaboury@shfinc.org Yes 
MHG Architects Michael Gelfand mgelfand@mhgarch.com Yes 
Fairstead Michael Kornspun michael.kornspun@fairstead.com Yes 
The Clarient Group Michael McCann mmccann@theclarientgroup.com Yes 
Comunilife, Inc. Michael O'Donnell modonnell@comunilife.org Yes 
Hudson Michael Ohlhausen mohlhausen@hudsoninc.com Yes 
Hill West Architects Michael Stevick mstevick@hillwest.com Yes 
P&L Management and 
Consulting, Inc.  

Michelle Piantadosi MP@PANDLMGMT.COM Yes 

Slate Property Group Michelle Ponce mponce@slatepg.com Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Michelle Wagner mw@ma.com Yes 
Innovative Property 
Management & Development 
Inc  

Miriam Rodriguez  Ipmedevelopment@aol.com Yes 

Fine And Fair Construction LLC Mohammed Hossain fandfcny@gmail.com Yes 
Mega Development Myles Monaghan mmonaghan@megagroup.nyc Yes 
PLHS-Int Nancy Jordan njordan1177@icloud.com Yes 
JGM, Inc. Naomi Chalfin nchalfin@gmail.com Yes 
N/A Nardia Greaves  greavesn14@gmail.com Yes 



 

 

Urban Builders Collaborative 
LLC 

Nexida Mejia nmejia@lettire.com Yes 

Morris Adjmi Architects Nicholas Chelko nc@ma.com Yes 
Langan Nicole Campo ncampo@langan.com Yes 
McKissack Nicole Daniel jdaniel@mckissack.com Yes 
I & N Services Inc  Nicole Lloyd  Nicole.lloydabdou80@gmail.com Yes 
Jonathan Rose Companies Nicole Zaccack nzaccack@rosecompanies.com Yes 
Arcadis Nikki Karpf de Castillo nikki.karpf@arcadis.com Yes 
Grimshaw Niko Dando nikolas.dando-

haenisch@grimshaw.global 
Yes 

Ailanthus Ofer Cohen ocohen@ailanthus.co Yes 
TANGERINE CLEANING SERVICE 
LLC 

OMARY CARRERO einfo@tangerinecleanup.com Yes 

Bright Power Patrick Slutter pslutter@brightpower.com Yes 
Apex Building Group  Philip Lee plee@apexbuilds.com Yes 
Purpose by Design Architects Rachel Simpson rsimpson@pxdarchitects.com Yes 
R & S Construction Corp  Raja Rizwan rscp9797@gmail.com Yes 
Apex Building Group Robert Horsford Robert@apexbuilds.com Yes 
Highwater Capital Group Ronald Chien rchien@highwatercg.com Yes 
NYC Housing Development  Rosa Almonte Rosaalmonte@yahoo.es Yes 
BDP (Building Design 
Partnership) 

Rosalind Tsang Rosalind.Tsang@bdp.com Yes 

Tempco Glass Fabrication Rufus Nguyen-McDowell rufus@tempcoglass.com Yes 
Catholic Homes of New York Russell Lang russell.lang@catholiccharitiesny.org Yes 
SD Builders  Ryan Goddard Rgoddard@sdbuildersny.com Yes 
Gordon & Frost Ryan Gordon ryan@gordonandfrost.com Yes 
OBRA Architects Sam McBride sam@obraarchitects.com Yes 
Camber Property Group Sarah Pizer spizer@camberpg.com Yes 
Gilbane Development 
Company 

Serin Leung sleung@gilbaneco.com Yes 

GF55 Architects Shay Alster shay@gf55.com Yes 
Aufgang SHIVA GHOMI shiva@aufgang.com Yes 



 

 

Practice for Architecture and 
Urbanism (PAU) 

Skylar Bisom-Rapp sb@pau.studio Yes 

Gilbane Development 
Company 

Stephanie Handfield shandfield@gilbaneco.com Yes 

Adjaye Associates Stephanie McMorran stephaniem@adjaye.com Yes 
WDF Inc. Stephen Berry sberry@wdfinc.net Yes 
Carey Group LLC Stephen Hayes Shayes@careyllc.com Yes 
Catholic Homes New York Susan Albrecht susan.albrecht@catholiccharitiesny.org Yes 
Selfhelp Realty Group Susan Wright swright@selfhelp.net Yes 
ZI Engineering tahir khan mtahirkhan@live.com Yes 
Sky Rise Inc Tariq Khan skyrise4@hotmail.com Yes 
Terra Linda Housing Services Ted Houghton ted.houghton@verizon.net Yes 
CHARIOT OF FIRE 
DELIVERANCE INC.  

Teji Omene mosogram19@gmail.com  Yes 

Xenolith Partners LLC Terri Belkas-Mitchell terri@xenolithpartners.com Yes 
Goddard Riverside Thacher Tiffany ttiffany@goddard.org Yes 
Architecture Outfit Thaddeus Briner Thaddeus@archoutfit.com Yes 
La Vie Development, Inc. Tonya Lewter tlewter@laviedevelopment.com Yes 
Constructomics,LLC Trevor Prince tprince@constructomics.com Yes 
Maddd Equities  William Bollinger bill@madddequities.com Yes 
Future Green Landscape 
Architecture 

Zenobia Meckley zmeckley@futuregreenstudio.com Yes 

 

 


